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Lapins AND GENTLEMEN, _ 

1. We are assembled here to celebrate the Diamond Jubilee of the 

constitution of this city into a Municipality, under the distinguished presi- 

dency of M-R.Ry. the Hoftourable Dr. P. SUBBARAY AN Ayl., M.A, LELD., 

B.0.1., Bar-at-Law, Jemindar of Kumaramangalam. and Chief Minister to 

the Government of Madras. 

e 

2. It was on the 9th May, 1866, that the Government of Madras, in 

@. 0: No. 471 (Public), c-"ed upon the District Magistrate of Tanjore, 

in his capacity as Ex-Officio President of the Municipal Commissions to be 

constituted in this District under the provisions of the Madras Towns Im- 

provement Act X of 1865, to submit, in consultation with the local officers 

and prominent residents, proposals for the constitution of a Municipal 

Commission and the appointment of suitable persons as Municipal Com- 

missioners of this city, as also information about the possible sources that 

might be tapped with advantage, under. the provisions of the Act. - Mr. G. 

Lee Morris, the then Collector and Magistrate, prop$sed the names of 10 

leading citizens to be nominated as Municipal Commissioners and their 

names, along with those of the Collector and Magistrate who was ¢he 

Ex-officio President of the Commission, and the Officer of the P. W. D., 

in executive charge of the Division who was Ex-officio Member, were 

gazetted. The Municipal Commissioners met informally in a room in the 
8 

then Collector’s Office in the small fort and discussed the plans to be~ 

adopted with a view to bring the act into operation and commence regular 

work. As the act eame into force on dhe 1st. Nayember 1866, this Munici- ° 

pality was formally ushered into existence on that date. 

3. Sixty years form one complete eyele according to Hindu Chronology 

and as such, the 60th birthday is held specially sacred by all classes of 

Hindus as marking the commencenient of a period of rejuvenation. This 

Municipality has completed one such cycle and is therefore on the threshold is 

of a cycle of rejuvenation, but the city itself has witnessed several such 

eycles, having been in existence for moré than a millennium, as one of the 

chief political, religious and litetary centres in South India. 

4. A short retrospect of Tanjore History. © = 

This aneient and historie city owes its importance to its situation 

at an ideal spot on the southern fringe of the Cauvery Deltag whtre it 

meets the western upland which reaches its highest part in the Vallam 

plateau in the neighbourhood. It is this ideal situation, very near a fertile 

delta, with a well drained soil and a sglubrious climate, that has been chiefls 
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responsible for 18 ha®ing attracted the cupidity of many an invader from 

the north and its choice as the capital city of many a dynasty of rulers 

that held sway over large tracts of south India ffom time immemoriai. The 

history of Tanjore is in fact a history of South India i in miniature. The 

city derived its name aceording to tradition from a Rakshasa, ‘THANJAN’ 

by name, who is said to pave devastated the neighbourhood and fallen a 

victim to the wrath of ‘Maha Vishnu’ whe however, with characteristic 

magnanimity granted the dying request of the Asura to name the city 

after him, The glories of the city have ever since been sung by many a 

bard and Saint, “andyerGCrr» தஞ்சை மாமணிக்‌ கோயிலிலே தொழுதேன்‌”. 

இருமங்கையாழ்வார்‌; ஊம்‌ உளரோ வ] 18ஐ0008 have gathered round its hoary 

anfiquity. 

5. At the dawn of history, when it emerges from its legendary period, 

we find the city in the occupation of the mighty Cholas, who were masters 

of.an ancient and vast kingdom in the ‘Punalnadu,’ the existence,of which 

is testified to as early as 260 B. C. by the edicts of Emperor Asoka and 

noticed by Ptolemy (130 A. D.), and the Periplus (264 A.D.) The first 

authentic mention on record about the city is at the beginning of the 9th 

Century A. D., when it was seized by Vijayalaya, the progenitor of a line 

of Chola kings, ‘from a vassal chief of the Pallavas, Perumpidugu Mutha- 

rafyan, who seems to have been the head of a garrison stationed in the big 

fort constructed by the Pallava King of the time to serve as an outpost 

on the borders of the Pandyan kingdom. Vijayalaya defeated Muthatryan 

and his Pallava ruler, got possession of the entire Ce delta and made 

x Tanjore his capital city. The kingdom was further extended by his succes- 

sors and in the days of Raja Raja the Great (985 to 1011 A. D.), the 6th 

in succession after Vijayalaya,*the Kingdom comprised almost the whole of 

the present Madra& presidency, the southern parts of Orissa, the eastern 

portion of Hyderabad and the island of Ceylon. 

It is this great potentate, who has immortalised his connection ° 

_ with this city by erecting the great Brahatheeswara Temple, ‘‘the finest in 

India,” and endowing it with large tracts of land and great wealth. Tanjore 

thus became the temple-city of thg Cholas, as Madura, her southern sister, 

was of the Pandyas. The inscriptions on the walls of the temple bear 

ample testimony to the greatness of the empire over which Raja Raja and 

his illustrious ancest®rs and successors held sway and also furnish valuable 

details of historic and economic interest relating to the period. The Saiva. 

Saint, “Karuvur Thevar,”’ who, at the fhstance of his patron, sang the 

praises of Rajarajeswaran, as the temple came to be known after its illus- 

.trious founder, makes mention of a fortifieation around the temple, which is 

evidently the small fort enclosing the Sivaganga tank and the temple, the 
e e 
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colossal ர்வ bull, ‘Nandi,’ plaéed ia front of the shrine, the Subra- 

manya temple with its exyuisite carvings, lying to the north-west, the very 

design of the temple and its architectural excellence serve as standing 

monuments to the genius of the Chelas and have extorted the admiration 

of Fergusson and other eminent Western architects. 

6. During the days of Rajaraja’s successor, Rajendra Chola, the 

capital was shifted to Gangaikonda-Cholapuram and it is very probably on 

> this account, that the celebrated Arabian traveller, Alberuni, who visited 

this place about the beginning of the 11th century A. D. states that it was 

in ruins. During the 12th Century the power of the Cholas graduallyo de- 

cline and we hear of a Pandyan King of the 13th Century boasting of his 

burning’ Tanjore along with Woriyur, the capital of his rival, a fact which 

shows that the city was of sufficient importanee to merit such mention. As 

a result of the devastation that ensued, the kingdom passed into the hands 

of the Pandyas and thence to the Hoysalas. MalikoKaffir, the general of 

Allauddin Khilji, who invaded South India about 1310, A. D., overthrew 

the kingdoms of the south and established Mahomedan rule over Madura, 

Trichinopoly and Tanjore. It is really remarkable that the saered tetiple 

at Tanjore should have eseaped the vandalism of this northern invader. 

Soon after, the Chola kingdom became a tributary to the Vijayanagar 

under the Udayars and the last nominal Chola King was killed in action 

by ற்‌. ‘otrianagamma Naick, the general of the Vijianagar army on his way 

ழி Madura. 

7. About 1534 Tanjore passed directly under the rule of Vijayanagar 
and a Nayak Viceroy came to he installed there. ~Nuniz a Portuguese chre- 
nicler (1587) mentions Tanjore, Nagupeto and Charamaodel as subject 
states of the Vijayanagar Naicks. Sevappa Naick (1549-1572), the first 

_ Naick Viceroy obtained Tanjore by his own valour and made it his capital 
_ city. The Portuguese seemed to have suffered very much at his hands, as 

is borne out by the evidence of Caesar Frederic, a European traveller, whe 5 
visited Tanjore about 1570 and alludes to it ay a “very great city, very 
populous ; and its abundance in victuals has atttracted many Portuguese to 
go thither, build houses and dwell there with small charge.’’ Sevappa is 
reputed to have dug up the big reservoir, Sevappaneri, which supplies the 
Sivaganga tank in the small fort and the water course which feeds the 
reservoir is to this day called. “Sevappa Naicken Vari.’ His successor 
Achuthappa (1572-1614), soon declared his kingdom indepmmdent of 
Vijayanagar, consequent. on the terrible blow dealt to the latter at the 
battle of Talikotta in 1565. Raghunatha, the third of the line, who: was. 
a famous patron of arts and letters and himesl?, an author of no small 

repute, founded a number of Vaishnavite temples and chatrams, » About
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1644 the Mahomedan kings of Goleofida and Bijapur were invited by the 
Naiks of the south to help them against their rivals of the north and thus 

after an interval of 300 years Tanjore had to bow its neck to a Mohamedan 

conqueror®for a second time. ‘The last of the Naick line, Vijayaraghava, 

came to the throne in 1673 and as a result of a feud between him and 

Alagiri the Madura Naick, was killed with shis°son, Mannaru, in a finai 

and desperate sortie at the north gate of the Fort during the attack of the 

Madura army. He is said to have built the big fort round the city. The 

Naicks seem to have been great builders and we owe the Palace; several 

forts and almost all the Vaishnava temples in the district together with a 

nufiber of tanks, chattrams and other works of public utility to the libe- 

rality of these kings. It is also noteworthy that it was during their reigns, 

the first attempts at European settlements were made on the Tanjore coast. 

The Portuguese established themselves at Negapatam in 1612, the Danes 

acquired Tranquebar about 1620 and the Dutch conquered Negapatam from 

the Portuguese in 1660. 

8.° Sengamaladas, the infant son of Mannaru, who had been taken 

away by his nurse to Negapatam before the final crash, applied for help 
to Bijapur-and the Bijapur court ordered Ekoji, otherwise known as 

Vénkaji, a half-brother of Sivaji the Great and a general then in the 

Bijapur army, to march upon Tanjore, drive the usurper Alagiri and 

place the refugee on his ancestral throne. Venkaji marched at the hedd of 

a large army, won a great victory near Ayyempat and established his pro- 

tege, on the throne: Quarrels soon ensued among the adherents of the 

Prince in connection with the appointment of a Minister and Venkaji who 

was then at Tiruvadamarwdur, avas isvited by one of the factions to seize the 

fort. Tanjore fell in 1674 into the hands of Venkaji, who then removed 

his head-quarters permanently to Tanjore from his Jaghir at Bangalore in 

1675. 

4 9. In 1677 Sivaji, the founder of the Mahratta Empire in the north, 

e soon led an expedition on behalf of Golconda against the Carnatic and 

claimed from his brother a moiety of Tanjore as his share of his father’s 

Jaghirs in the South. Despairing of sucgess against his mighty brother, 

Venkaji was about to don the robes of a ‘Byragi’ and relinquish the throne 

in ‘his favour, when,°in a mood of genorosity Sivaji gave up his claims on 

é his brother consenting to pay a large sum of money and divide his father’s 

jewels and revenues and abandoned his aftempt to strengthen his hold on 
South pia Being a weak Prince, Venkaji was soon forced to sell away 

“his Jaghirs to the Mysore Raj and thus practically isolated the Tanjore 
Kingdom from its parent source.in the Dekhan. He died in 1687 and was 
sueceeded by hés sons, -Shahaji, Sarabhoji and Thukkoji, who occupjed 

© pene, e ௫ e 
ட்‌. e க 5 Cs) 

i ® உ 
ல ie °



 



ல 2 e 6 

the throne in succession for a period df 48*years. About this time Tanjore 

had to face the invasion Sf the Moghul General, Zulfikhakhan (1691) who 

was sent by his master Aurangazeb to put down the power of the Mahrattas 

of the south. The Moghul Commander levied contribution from Tanjore, 

deprived the Rajah of a portion of his territory and reduced him to the 

position of a feudatory of the Moghul, paying an annual tribute of 4 lakhs 

of rupees. In the reign of Thukkoji, the Tanjore Mahrattas seemed to have 

extended their power southward in the direction of Rameswaram and con- 

> quered the Zemindaris of Sivaganga and Ramnad, wherein the Mahratta 

generals of the time greatly distinguished themselves. On the death of 

Thukkoji in 1735 there followed a period of insurrections in consequence 

of the dispute as to succession. Tanjore whichehad been attacked by 

Chanda*Sahib in the previous year eame to be dominated by the Moghul 

Commander to such an extent that he seems 60 have felt powerful enough 

to impose his own nominees as rulers. Four years later Chanda Sahib re- 

appeared and took the city and enforced payment of tribute to the great 

Moghul. In 1789 Saiyaji, the second son of Thukkoji, granted Karikal to 

the French in return for an assurance of help to depose a pretender, “Iattu- 

raja,’ from the throne, Saiyaji was himseli deposed in 1740, and Prathapa 

Singh, his illegitimate brother, was finally placed upon the throne, with the 

general concurrence of the principal men of the kingdom. It was in this 

ee that the confederate Mahratta forces led by Raghoji Bhonsle of 

Nagpur made a second ineursion from the north with a view to seize the உ 

southern prov: inces permanently but they soon found that they had enough | 

pre-oceupation in Bengal and Central India and retraced their steps home- | 

ward after leaving a garrison at Trichinopoly, which they had captured 

and taking Chanda Sahib a prisoner t® Satara. ¢2he Ex-King Saiyaji soli- 

cited the assistance of the English in 1749, offering to pay the expenses of 

the expedition and cede Devikotta near the mouth of the Coleroon to them 

if they should succeed in driving Prathapa Singh and re-instate him on his 

father’s throne. Meanwhile Chanda Sahib was released and in conjune- 

tion with Muzzaffar Jung, the Subedar of the Dekhan and a column of © 

French Troops, sent by Dupleix laid seige to the city of Tanjore, forced 

Prathapa Singh to come to terms, but abandoned the siege on the approach 

of Nazir Jung’s army. During the 10 years’ war between the English and 

the French (1750 to 1760), the Tanjore Rajas sided with Mahommed Aili, 

the English protege, and suffered at the hands of the French, who under 

Count-de-Lally plundered Tanjore in 1758 and would have taken the city 

but for the timely arrival of an English contingent at Tanjore and an. 

English fleet at Karikal. Throughout the Carnatic wars, the Tanjore army 

under Mankoji played an important part on ‘the side of the English and 

Mahommed Ali. Notwithstanding this, Raja Thulasaji (1763-1787) was 

foifeed to become a tributary of the Nawab and dyreed to pay ட்டு of 
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Hup@es as annual tribute. With the help of the Madras Government to 

whom he was heavily indebted, the Nawab atta¢ked Tanjore in 1771 for 

arrears of tribute and the interests of the Tanjore Raj had once more to 

yield to th® greed of the Mahommedan Nawab and his English co-adjutors, 

who dictated the policy ofthe Madras Government. Again the place was 

besieged in 1773 by a strong English force under General Smith who cap- 

tured it, took the Raja prisoner with the members of his family and annexed 

his territory to the Nawab’s kingdom. At the intervention of the Court’ of 

Directors, who strongly condemned the conduct of the Madras Government 

Thulasaji was re-instated on his ancestral throne in 1776, on his agreeing 

to fay an annual subsidy of 4 lakhs of rupees, Tanjore thus became a pro- 

tected state and its ruler a direct ally of the Hast India Company. During 

the raids of Hyder Ali in 1781 the Tanjore Raj had to undergo great hard- 

ships, although the eapital city escaped in consideration of a heavy payment 

made by Thulasaji and has ever since been {ree from the attacks, of an 

invading army. Thulasaji died in 1787 and as the adoption of Sarabhoji 

by him was declared invalid his brother Amar Singh succeeded to the throne. 

But the many liabilities due to the Madras Government had so increased 

by this time and the resources of the state so greatly crippled, that Amar 

Singh was unable to meet his engagements. Meanwhile Sarabhoji found a 

protector and friend in Mr. Schwartz, the Danish Missionary, and at his in- 

stance the Governor-General and the Court of Directors who were petitioned 

to rescind their former decision, finally recognised Sarabhoji’s claim and re- 

.instated him in 1798, granting a suitable pension to Amar Singh, who 

thence retired to Tiruvadamarudur. The next year the Marquis of Welles- 

ley prevailed upon Sarabhoji to hand over the administration of his king- 

dom to the British under a treaty and thence forward Tanjore became a 

British proyince. Sarabhoji was recognised as a titular Raja, exercising 

sole authority over a small area round the fort, which was later reduced to 

the fort itself (in 1841) and a pension based on the revenues of the pro- ° 

vinee was fixed on him. He was succeeded by his son Sivaji in 1833 and on 

* the latter’s death without issue in 1855, the title and dignity of the Raja 

was declared extinct and the state lapsed to the Company. “When the 

British acquired possession of the country it was formed into 2 collectorates 

northern and southern but in April 1800 it was established into a single 

eoHectorate with headquarters at Negapatam in 1799, Tranquebar 1845 and 

Tanjore 1860. Till 1806 the revenue as well as the judicial administration 

was ested in the Collector and in that yéar a Zilla Court was established 

in Kumbakonam, which was later split into two principal courts, the one at 

. Kumbakonnam, and the other at Tranquebar in 1860. The latter was 

finally abolished in 1884cwhile the former was removed to Tanjore in 1863 

and was till recently the only District Court. The Collector resides at 
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Vallam and was holding his office there as early as 1828. This became 

necessary after his appointment as Resident in 1842 and his headquarters 

were transferred to Tanjore in 1860. The present Collector’s Office was 

built between 1896 and 1900 at a cost of over Rs. 1,90,000. 

10. The first Municipal Commussioners of the City. ன்‌ 

The Madras Towns Ishprovement, Act. °X of 1865 introduced for 

the first time in this city a qualified system of local autonomy in the manage- 

ment of civic affairs, based upon the wholesome principle of ,associating 

local residents with the expert officials of Government to share the burden 

of responsibility in the task of contributing to the comfort and convenience 

of the residents of towns. For this purpose, rates, tolls, taxes andedees 

were to be levied from the residents of towns for their improvement, to be 

expendéd towards the upkeep and maintenance of communications and 

other works of public utility, schools, hospitals, rest-houses, supply of good 

water for drinking, bathing and washing purposes, medical relief, drainage, 

removal of filth, lighting, ete., and the corporate bodies that were brought 

into existence were intended to serve in the words of Lord Ripon ‘‘as instru- 

ments of political education.’? The cost of maintenance of the local police 

foree was also to be borne out of the rates levied under the Act, the Govern- 

ment on their part undertaking to subsidise the Municipal.Commission to 

the extent of 25 per cent of the amount thus raised and expended. The 

first Commissioners nominated by the Government consisted mostly of pro- 

minent local residents of light and leading who had sufficient knowledge 

and experience of the days of Mahratta Administration. After the British 

took over charge in 1858, a sum of Rs. 4,440, was paid annually by Govern- 

ment towards the cost of conservaney of the town, viz., the cleaning of the 

drains and the maintenance of a scavenger estallishment. When the new 

Act came into force this allowance was incorporated in the annual contribu- 

tion to the Municipal Funds payable by the Government under the Act. 

_ the first Commissioners seemed to have evinced great interest in the dis- 

charge of their duties as is borne out by the very fine set of by-laws drawn 

up by them in 1867 and 1868. With the exception of one of them in 

which they allowed their newly won privilege to outrun its legitimate 

bounds, these by-laws were readily confirtaed by the Government, standing 

as they did a very favourable comparison with any other set of model by- 

laws devised by Municipal Corporations of the time. The by-law to which 

exception was taken is as follows ‘‘Commissioners shall have the power to 

break open the houses of persons டு lock them up to evade payment of any 

Municipal Tax and to attach any* property therein found in satisfaction of 

such an arrear.’’ Again, when on the eve of the very first full year of the 

working of the Act, 1.¢., 1867-68 the Commissioners proposed to levy a ~ 
house tax at 4 per cent 2 the rental Hass in addition to the other taxes, 
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fees, ete., வன the previons yar and Government wanted them to ex- 

plam if the necessity tor suchean additional impost had been ascertained 

and it could be raised without any undue préssure on the people, the 

Commissioners state that experience has shown to them that several wealthy 

inhabitants of Tanjore altogether escape a license tax that no undue pres- 

" sure was likely to be felt by the additional levy and that the different modes 

proposed by them were really required. °Thé concluding remarks of 

M.R.Ry. (afterwards Sir) A. Seshia Sastrial AvL, Secretary, to the Com- 

mission, on the working of the Act 1867-68 are worth quoting here, as every 

word of his, though written 60 years ago, rings true and is equally appli- 

eable at the present day :—‘‘The taxes had to be levied amidst much silent 

opposition and distrust of the declared intentions of the legislature. The 

Commissioners therefere were only too anxious to show at the outset by 

their works that the comfort and convenience of the people were of the 

most paramount consideratéon. In addition to being called upon to pay 

several taxes, which are proverbially unpopular everywhere, the public 

have had to submit 40 several restrictions ereated by the Municipal Act, 

all of which more or less interfered with their established routine of life 

and necessitated the extinction of time-honoured usages. The Commis- 

sioners therefore were slow to enforce the penal provisions of the act .... 

Sober bce anne In a few years more, the Commissioners trust that when 

the works connected with the supply of good water are extended and im- 

proved, the roads put in good order and the streets and lanes swept and 

cleaned punctually, the unpopularity of the Municipal Law will wear away 

and be succeeded by a reaction which will strenethen the hands of the 

Commissioners.’ Mr. G. Lee Morris, the President, in the course of his 

endorsement on the above, adds: ‘‘Regarding the improvements in the 

* cleanliness and appearance of the® streets as well as in the state of the 

principal roads, more especially in Tanjore, there can be no manner of 

doubt; for, driving in the streets is now a pleasure, whilst formerly it was 

actually a penance.’’ 5 

11. The strength of the Commission was originally twelve including 

the Hx-officio President and the Ex-officio Member. On 17-11-1866, Mr. 

G. A. Parker, the then Assistant Collector, was first appointed as Vice- 

President. Some time later, the members of the commission chose one of 

their number as Secretary to the commission. The office establishment at 

first consisted of a Manager, an English Clerk, a Vernacular Clerk and a 

Surveyor and estimate-maker while conservancy work was in charge of a 

nufsance Inspeetor. As early as 1870 the Commissioners resolved that the 

electiveeprinciple should be adopted in the appointment of Commissioners 

while fhe selection of a Vice-President was to be entrusted to the Govern- 

ment. On 1—5—1871 the Towns Improvement Act TI of 1871 came into 
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force and thenceforward the first April came to be recoghised as the first 

day of the Municipal Official year. . The new Act differed from the | old, 

in that it entirely relieved the Municipal Commissioners of the charges 

incurred on account of the maintenance of the Police force, and the Govern. 

ment, in their tura, withdrew the grant-in-aid they were making under the 

old Act. The new Act also contemplated the conferring of the elective 

franchise on the Commissioners, but the Comrfissioners at Tanjore were 

of opinion that it was undesirable at that stage. About 1874 Government 

thoved in the matter of the election of the Commissioners by the rate- 

> payers but as the rules for the conduct of elections were not finally settled 

till 1879 the first elections of the Commissioners took place on 1—6—1880 

to fill up 2 seats which had then fallen vacant. 

12. The boundaries of the Municipality were fixed by the Commis- 

sioners in 1866 and an actual measurement of the streets, roads, houses and 

vacant sites seems to have been completed in 1068. There has been no altera- 

tion or éxtension of the area attempted ever sinec. Soon after the intro- 

duction of the Madras District Municipalities Act TV of 1884, the town was 

divided into six wards and this was adopted as the basis during the town 

survey which was finished in 1898. The strength of the Council, which 

stood at twelve on the date of the incorporation of the Municipality, was 

raised to eighteen in 1879 and further increased under the new act, to 

twenty-four of whom eighteen were to be elected by the rate payers and 

the vest nominated by the Government. The distribution of elective seats 

among the six wards was as follows :— 

Wards I and V—two each, ்‌ ்‌ 2 

Wards II and I1V—three each, க . 

Wards III and VI—four each, 5 i 2 

When Act V of 1920 came into force, these six wards were recast into 

twenty-four for electoral purposes, each of them being made to return one 

* Councillor. With a view to ensure efficient supervision, however, the 
Municipal area has been divided into five divisions for conservancy, three 
for lighting, and a like number for the registration of vital statistics and_ 

vaccination. As for water supply, the area lying to the north of the Clock 

tower which is supplied direet from the pumping station forms one divi- 

sion, while the area lying to the south which is supplied from the reservoir 
forms another. In addition to the twenty-four elective seats, the new <Act 
provides for eight seats to be filled up by nominations by Government, pre- 
sumably meant for the adequate representation of minority interests. The 
strength of the Council on the date of this report is 31, one elective seal 
yet remaining to be filled up. The Councib counts amongst its present, 

members one European, two Anglo-Indians, of whom one is a lady, three 

poe : ச ° °




